
Page 1 BOC/STAFF/05/30/2013

STAFF MEETING MINUTES  
LANCASTER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

COUNTY-CITY BUILDING, ROOM 113
THURSDAY, MAY 30, 2013

8:30 A.M.

Commissioners Present: Larry Hudkins, Chair
Brent Smoyer, Vice Chair
Jane Raybould
Roma Amundson

Commissioners Absent: Deb Schorr

Others Present: Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer
Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer
Dan Nolte, County Clerk
Cori Beattie, Deputy County Clerk
Ann Taylor, County Clerk’s Office

Advance public notice of the Board of Commissioners Staff Meeting was posted on the
County-City Building bulletin board and the Lancaster County, Nebraska, web site and
provided to the media on May 29, 2013

The Chair noted the location of the Open Meetings Act and opened the meeting at
8:31 a.m.

Smoyer arrived at the meeting at 8:33 a.m.

AGENDA ITEM

LEGISLATIVE UPDATE - Gordon Kissel and Joe Kohout, Kissel/E&S
Associates (Legislative Consultants)

Joe Kohout, Kissel/E&S Associates, presented a legislative update, list of interim
studies and a legislative bills of interest report (Exhibits A and B).

Amundson arrived at the meeting at 8:40 a.m.

Discussion took place regarding Legislative Bill (LB) 561 (Change provisions and
transfer responsibilities regarding the juvenile justice system).  Kohout noted the bill
passed the Legislature and was signed into law by the Governor yesterday, with an
emergency clause.  He said a number of questions remain regarding implementation



Page 2 BOC/STAFF/05/30/2013

and said they are working with the Nebraska Association of County Officials (NACO) to
address those concerns.  Raybould inquired about the timeline for implementation. 
Sheli Schindler, Youth Services Center (YSC) Director, appeared and said youth will
begin to be placed in the supervision of Juvenile Probation on October 1st.  Youth who
are in the custody of the Office of Juvenile Services (OJS) will remain there until their
case is closed.  Sara Hoyle, Juvenile Justice Coordinator, appeared and said she serves
on the Nebraska Crime Commission’s Community Planning Advisory Team that is
looking at county planning and said counties will be required to have a plan in order to
apply for county aid funds.  It was noted that Schindler and Joe Kelly, County
Attorney, serve on the Crime Commission Board and will have an opportunity to work
on the plans.  

 1 APPROVAL OF THE STAFF MEETING MINUTES OF THURSDAY,
MAY 23, 2013

MOTION: Raybould moved and Smoyer seconded approval of the minutes of the
May 23, 2013 Staff Meeting.  Raybould, Amundson, Smoyer and Hudkins
voted aye.  Schorr was absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

 2 ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

A. Arena Tour

MOTION: Amundson moved and Raybould seconded approval of the addition to the
agenda.  Amundson, Smoyer, Raybould and Hudkins voted aye.  Schorr
was absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

 3 LEGISLATIVE UPDATE - Gordon Kissel and Joe Kohout, Kissel/E&S
Associates (Legislative Consultants)

Item was moved forward on the agenda.

 4 BUDGET UPDATE - Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer

Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer, discussed the following documents, noting a
few amounts have been adjusted since the departmental budget hearings (Exhibit C):

• Lancaster County, Property Tax Funded Budgets, Fiscal Year (FY)
2014 Requested Compared to FY 2013 Adopted

Meyer noted the Region V match has been moved from the Community Mental Health
Center (CMHC) Fund into the General Fund.

• Expenditures and Revenue Possibilities Outside the General Fund



Page 3 BOC/STAFF/05/30/2013

• Lancaster County, General Fund Budget, FY 2014 Compared to FY
2013

Meyer noted there is a $4,454,244 increase in General Fund Requests.  He said
$3,273,659 is related to payroll costs. 

• Lancaster County, Comparison of Payroll Costs, FY 2014 Compared to
FY 2013

Meyer attributed most of the increase to the hiring of additional employees to staff the
new Lancaster County Adult Detention Facility (LCADF), salary adjustments, health
insurance costs, and Post Employment Health Plan (PEHP) payouts.

In response to a question from Raybould, Meyer said the total deficit is approximately
$6,000,000.  That amount will increase by an additional $3,200,000 if the Board
decides to not use 1.6 cents of the Railroad Transportation Safety District (RTSD) levy,
as it did last year.

 5 COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER (CMHC) UPDATE - Linda
Wittmuss, Associate Regional Administrator, Region V Systems

Linda Wittmuss, Associate Regional Administrator, Region V Systems, noted Region V
Systems and Lancaster County issued an Request for Proposal (RFP) in March, 2013
for entities interested in providing behavioral health services currently provided by the
Community Mental Health Center (CMHC).  Five entities (Blue Valley Behavioral Health,
CenterPointe, Lutheran Family Services, Omni Behavioral Health and Premier
Psychiatric Group) responded and applied for one or more service categories: 1) Core
Services (Community Support, Medication Management, Outpatient, and Day
Treatment); 2) Day Rehabilitation; 3) Psychiatric Residential Rehabilitation; and 4) 24-
Hour Crisis Line.  A Review Committee evaluated the responses and has made the
following recommendations (Exhibit D):

• Core Services - Lutheran Family Services 
• Day Rehabilitation - CenterPointe
• Psychiatric Residential Rehabilitation - Omni Behavioral Health
• 24-Hour Crisis Line - CenterPointe

Wittmuss said the Behavioral Health Advisory Committee (BHAC) approved the
recommendations on May 29th.  The County Board is asked to approve a resolution to
accept the Review Committee’s recommendations at the June 4th County Board of
Commissioners Meeting.   She said the recommendations will then be presented to the
Region V Governing Board on June 10th for their approval to move forward and if that
occurs, Region V will enter into contract negotiations with those three entities.  The
contract with Lancaster County will also have to be amended as services begin to
transition. 



Page 4 BOC/STAFF/05/30/2013

Wittmuss said most indicated in their transition plans they will need to have up until
the end of the next fiscal year to take over activities.  She said some may need less,
depending on service type.  Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer,
explained that the County will require a specific transition date to transition all the
services for personnel and cost reporting purposes.  Wittmuss agreed to work with the
County to resolve that issue.

In response to a question from Raybould, Wittmuss said all of the entities were
apprised that the only funding commitment is from Region V and their responses were
to be based solely on that funding and potential Medicaid revenues for services.  She
said they are also aware that Region V has set aside funds to aid the transition and
that the County has $500,000 that could be made available through that process. 

It was noted the proposals, evaluation criteria and consensus scores will be made
available upon request.

NOTE: Representatives of CenterPointe, Lutheran Family Services, and Omni
Behavioral Health were also present for the discussion.

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

A. Arena Tour

Staff was asked to arrange a tour of the new arena for the Board.

 6 ZONING REGULATION MOBILE HOME WIDTH REQUIREMENT -
Sara Hartzell, Planner

Sara Hartzell, Planner, discussed a request from Joshua Wohl to put a mobile home on
property near the corner of Southwest 128th Street and West Panama Road.  She said
she consulted Terry Kathe, Zoning Coordinator, Building and Safety Department, and
they determined the mobile home could be a conditional use, with a 20-acre lot
required.  However, Wohl’s mobile home did not meet the width requirement.  Hartzell
said she continued to look for other options and discovered there is a provision for
special permit for a mobile home on an individual lot, which is subject to the following
conditions (see Article 4, Section 4.007, Permitted Special Uses, of the Lancaster
County Zoning Regulations):

• The lot meets all the height and area regulations of this district except
the Planning Commission may increase the yard areas; (County
Resolution No. R-11-0023, March 29, 2011)

• The mobile home is securely and permanently attached to a
permanent foundation complying with the building codes;

• The towing bar and hitch, wheels and tires, and axles are removed.
(County Resolution No. 3777, January 18, 1983)



Page 5 BOC/STAFF/05/30/2013

Hudkins inquired about the duration of the special permit.  Hartzell said there is none,
explaining this differs from the special permits for a temporary mobile home during
construction of a residence, not to exceed three (3) years in duration, or when a
resident of the mobile home or the house needs daily assistance.

DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS

A. Lincoln Independent Business Association (LIBA) Monthly Meeting -
Hudkins

Hudkins said they discussed the new Lancaster County Adult Detention Facility
(LCADF).

B. Lancaster County Correctional Facility Joint Public Agency (JPA) -
Hudkins, Smoyer

Hudkins reported on payment of claims totaling $172,671.45 from Wells Fargo for
bank fees; Sampson Construction Company, the Construction Manager at-Risk; and
Becker Construction, Inc. for services related to the warehouse.  The JPA also
approved an interest payment of $1,168,602.50 to Wells Fargo.

 7 WILDLIFE CONTROL - Ricky Woods, U.S. Department of Agriculture
(USDA) Wildlife Biologist

Ricky Woods, U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) Wildlife Biologist, noted
Lancaster County had been offered the opportunity to be part of a block of at least
four counties that would contract with the USDA’s Animal and Plant Health Inspection
Service (APHIS) Wildlife Services Program for a wildlife specialist who would respond
to calls seeking assistance with wildlife problems (see February 28, 2013 Staff Meeting
minutes).  He said Lancaster County’s share of the cost had been estimated at $10,000
per year.  It has since been revised to $7,500 with the addition of other partners. 
Woods said that equates to 150 hours of work in the County, noting federal dollars will
“kick in” if more hours are required.  Woods offered several draft contracts for the
Board’s consideration (Exhibit E).  

In response to a question from Hudkins, Woods said his agency works closely with the
Nebraska Game and Parks Commission and has done multiple investigations for them.

There was general consensus to delay a decision on whether to enter into a contract 
until the budget is finalized.

 



Page 6 BOC/STAFF/05/30/2013

 8 LABOR NEGOTIATIONS - Richard Grabow, Deputy County Attorney;
Doug McDaniel, Personnel Director; Nicole Gross and Amy Sadler,
Compensation Technicians

MOTION: Smoyer moved and Amundson seconded to enter Executive Session at
9:54 a.m. for the purpose of protecting the public interest with regards
to labor negotiations. 

The Chair restated the motion for the record.

ROLL CALL: Smoyer, Raybould, Amundson and Hudkins voted aye.  Schorr was
absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

MOTION: Amundson moved and Raybould seconded to exit Executive Session at
10:37 a.m.  Amundson, Raybould and Hudkins voted aye.  Schorr and
Smoyer were absent from voting.  Motion carried 3-0.

 9 GENERAL DISCUSSION ON VARIOUS PERSONNEL ISSUES
(HEALTH INSURANCE PREMIUMS FOR MARRIED COUNTY
EMPLOYEES, VACATION PAYOUT, AND INTER-DEPARTMENT
TRANSFERS) - Doug McDaniel, Personnel Director

Health Insurance Premiums for Married County Employees

Doug McDaniel, Personnel Director, noted a proposal came out of the Sheriff’s Office
to offer employees a cash incentive to opt out of the County’s health insurance plan. 
He felt that would be contradictory to the Affordable Care Act, which seeks to increase
the base of individuals covered under health insurance.  Raybould said she thought the
intent was to encourage employees to seek coverage under their spouse’s plan. 
McDaniel said there could be a spousal surcharge in some instances.  He noted the
County’s plan is pre-tax and may not be discriminatory in application.  The cash
incentive to opt out would have to be offered to all employees and it’s possible that
healthy employees would opt out and unhealthy employees would remain in the plan. 
That would have an adverse impact on the plan.  McDaniel added there are a limited
number of carriers willing to administer the plan and they might withdraw if coverage
were made optional.  He said Tracy Krause, Account Executive, AON Risk Solutions,
shares his sentiments.  NOTE: AON provides employee benefit consulting services for
the County’s insurance programs.

Smoyer returned to the meeting at 10:40 a.m.

McDaniel noted a concern had been raised that married county employees are both
opting for single coverage.  He said only six couples who are doing so have been
identified thus far and said they are entitled to the same benefits offered to other
employees.



Page 7 BOC/STAFF/05/30/2013

Vacation Payout

McDaniel said the practice has been to allow an employee who is retiring to use
accumulated vacation to string out the effective date of retirement.  In addition, the
employee has been allowed to accrue additional vacation and sick leave during that
time period.  He said the Personnel Rules could be revised to eliminate that accrual. 
McDaniel said employees may be worried about a tax consequence if they have
accumulated vacation paid out in a lump sum.  Raybould said she would like the
Personnel Department to study the issue further, noting the practice is contrary to
most business practices.  McDaniel said he would like a month to do so, noting other
work demands.

Inter-Department Transfers

Item was held for more information.  

10 ACTION ITEMS

There were no action items.

11 CONSENT ITEMS

There were no consent items.

12 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. Management Team Agenda Items (June 13, 2013)

The following items were suggested: 1) Time and attendance monitoring ; 2) The
Nebraska Supreme Court decision regarding the Blakely vs. County of Lancaster
lawsuit; 3) 2013 Nebraska Association of County Officials (NACO) “Walk for Your Life”
Challenge; and 4) Roundtable discussion.

13 PENDING

There were no pending items.

14 DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS

A. Lincoln Independent Business Association (LIBA) Monthly Meeting -
Hudkins

B. Lancaster County Correctional Facility Joint Public Agency (JPA) -
Hudkins, Smoyer

Items A and B were moved forward on the agenda.



Page 8 BOC/STAFF/05/30/2013

15 EMERGENCY ITEMS AND OTHER BUSINESS

There were no emergency items and other business.

16 ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Schorr moved and Raybould seconded to adjourn the meeting at 11:03
a.m.  Raybould, Amundson, Smoyer and Hudkins voted aye.  Schorr was
absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

__________________
Dan Nolte
Lancaster County Clerk


































































































































































